CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 2011

Compiled by the

California Department of Public Health

Legislative and Governmental Affairs

PO Box 997377 – MS

Sacramento, CA 95899-7377

(916) 440-7502

Deputy Director

Monica Wagoner

Assistance Deputy Director

Margaret Graham Wener

Legislative Coordinators

Richard T. Kwong
Sarah Logue
Sheena Nash
George Scordakis

Legislative Staff

Tony Huizar

LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 2010

Table of Contents

2011 California Department of Public Health (CDPH Administration Sponsored Legislation	iii
Index of Bills Signed by the Governor, by Primary CDPH Program Area	iii
Summaries for Bills signed by the Governor	
CENTER FOR CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION	1
Chronic Disease and Injury Control	1
CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH	4
Drinking Water and Environmental Management	4
Food, Drug, and Radiation Safety	6
CENTER FOR FAMILY HEALTH	8
Genetic Disease Screening Program	8
Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health	9
CENTER FOR HEALTH Care Quality	9
Licensing and Certification	9
CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS DISEASES	9
AIDS, Office of	10
Communicable Disease Control	12
HEALTH INFORMATION AND STRATEGIC PLANNING	13
LEGAL SERVICES	15
MULTICULTURAL HEALTH	15
Numeric Index of Enrolled Bills for Legislative Year 2010	17
Program Assignments and Acronyms	19
Sign and Veto Message Index	20
(Followed by Governor's Sign/Veto Messages in Numeric Order)	

2011 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HELATH ADMINSTARTION SPONSORED LEGISLATION

BILL NUMBER	AUTHOR	CHAPTER	SUBJECT
AB 1194	Block	516	Safe Drinking Water Act Conformance
AB 1292	Hernandez	518	Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund: Revenue Bonds
AB 1382	Hernandez	643	Hepatitis C Antibody Testing

INDEX OF BILLS SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR BY CDPH PROGRAM AREA

CENTER FOR CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION

Chronic Disease	Control and	Injury	/ Control
------------------------	--------------------	--------	-----------

AB 6	CalWORKS and CalFresh	1
AB 152	Food banks: grants; voluntary contributions; income tax credits	1
AB 516	Safe Routes to School	1
AB 581	Public Health: Food Access	2
AB 768	Male Circumcision	
AB 795	Public Postsecondary Education: Smoke Free Campuses	2
AB 1329	Ken Maddy California Cancer Registry	
SB 161	Schools: emergency Medical Assistance: Administration of Epilepsy Medication	
SB 332	Rental Dwellings: Smoking	
SB 583	Personal Income Tax: Voluntary Contributions: ALS/Lou Gehrig's D Research Fund	isease
SB 929	Vehicles: Child Passenger Restraints	
CENTER	R FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH	
Drinking \	Water and Environmental Management	
AB 54	Drinking Water	
AB 300	Safe Body Art Act	
AB 762	Public Health: Medical Waste	
AB 938	Public Water Systems	
AB 983	Safe Drinking Water-State Revolving Fund	
AB 1194	Safe Drinking Water Act Conformance	
AB 1292	Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund: Revenue Bonds	
SB 482	Public Beach Contamination: Standards: Testing: Closing	6
Food, Dru	ıg, and Radiation Safety	
AB 688	Food and Drugs: Sale	6
AB 1014	Food Facilities: Definition	6
AB 1319	Product Safety: Bisphenol A	7
SB 20	Food Facilities: Menu Labeling	7
SB 38	Radiation Control: Health Facilities and Clinics: Records	7
SB 39	Caffeinated Beer Beverages	
SB 303	Food Safety: food Handlers	
SB 646	Toxics: Enforcement: Lead and Cadmium Jewelry	8
SR 818	Food Labeling: Olive Oil	۶

Genetic Disease Screening Program AB 395 Severe Combined Immunodeficiency (SCID) Expanded Newborn Screening8 Women, Infants, and Children SB 502 Hospital Infant Feeding Act......9 CENTER FOR HEALTH CARE QUALITY **Licensing and Certification** Healing Arts: Telehealth......9 **AB 415 AB 641** Long-Term Care9 **ABX 1 19** Long-Term Care SB 91 **SB 100** SB 177 Congregate Living Health Facilities10 CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS DISEASE AIDS, Office of **AB 604** SB 41 Hypodermic Needles and Syringes......11 SB 422 SB 946 Autism-HIV/AIDS Reporting......12 **Communicable Disease Control** Reportable Diseases and Conditions......12 **AB 186** AB 258 AB 499

CENTER FOR FAMILY HEALTH

AB 709

AB 1382 SB 614

MISCELLANEOUS

Health Information and Strategic Planning

AB 433	Birth Certificates	
AB 687	Adoption	14
AB 791	Dependent Children: Birth Certificates	14
AB 905	Dispositions of Remains: Authorized Agent	
AB 1053	Local Government Penalties and Fees	14
AB 1088	State Agencies: Collection of Demographic Data	14
SB 154	Marriage Licenses: Vital Records Fees: Domestic Violence: Solano	
	County	15
Legal Sei	rvices	
SB 24	Person Information Privacy	15
Multicult	ural Health	
AB 673	Office of Multicultural Health: LGBT Communities	15

CENTER FOR CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION

Chronic Disease and Injury Control

AB 6 Fuentes (Chapter 501)

CalWORKS and CalFresh

Assembly Bill (AB) will (1) remove fingerprinting requirements for eligibility to CalFresh and (2) revise the income reporting requirements for recertification from quarterly to semiannual for CalWORKS and CalFresh participants. CalWORKS and CalFresh are administered by the California Department of Social Services (CDSS). The relevance CDPH is its Interagency Agreement (IA) with CDSS to administer nutrition education and the CalFresh Access Improvement Plan to provide food assistance to needy families. AB 6 also makes changes to the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program which provides utility assistance for low-income recipients.

AB 152 Fuentes (Chapter 503)

FOOD BANKS: GRANTS: VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS: INCOME TAX CREDITS

AB 152 will require the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) to investigate and apply for federal funding opportunities to be used to promote healthy eating and prevent obesity. The bill will allow CDPH to utilize those funds by providing in-kind support and awarding grants to support local assistance for local governments, local education agencies and non-profits that encourage healthy eating programs. AB 152 will provide CDPH with an exemption from the contracting process for awarding grants. AB 152 will also allow a tax credit for qualified taxpayers that donate to California food banks. Finally, the bill will require CDSS to establish and administer the State Emergency Food Assistance Program for the purchase, storage, and transportation of food grown or produced in California to low-income households.

AB 516 V. Manuel Perez (Chapter 277) SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOLS

AB 516 will require the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to fully consider the needs of low-income schools in the guidelines and procedures for funding under the Safe Routes to School program, makes the definition of low-income schools consistent with the Free and Reduced Price Meal Program administered by the California Department of Education (CDE), and provides for a public participation process.

AB 581 John A. Perez (Chapter 505)

PUBLIC HEALTH: FOOD ACCESS

AB 581 will create the California Healthy Food Financing Initiative (CHFFI) to further access of nutritional foods to Californians who reside in food desert communities. AB 581 will also require the California Department of Food and Agriculture (CDFA) to prepare legislative recommendations, in consultation with an advisory group to promote healthy food access in California. The bill will also create a CHFFI Fund in the State Treasury and establish a CHFFI Council to implement the initiative.

AB 768 Gatto and Ma (Chapter 398)

MALE CIRCUMCISION

AB 768 will prevent local jurisdictions from prohibiting or restricting the practice of male circumcision or restrict parental authority to have their child circumcised.

AB 795 Block (Chapter 617)

PUBLIC POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION: SMOKE FREE CAMPUSES

AB 795 will authorize the governing bodies of the community college districts, the California State University (CSU), and the University of California (UC) to set tobacco use enforcement standards for local campuses and impose fines for violations. CSU campuses and community college districts adopting these standards will be required to post signage where smoking is prohibited and permitted and inform employees and students of the campus tobacco use policy and enforcement procedures. AB 795 will request that the UC adopt these provisions.

AB 1329 Davis (Chapter 642)

KEN MADDY CALIFORNIA CANCER REGISTRY

AB 1329 will authorize CDPH to establish a competitive process to receive applications for, and issue, the award of a contract, grant, or funding allocation to operate the Ken Maddy California Cancer Registry (CCR) and to issue grants, enter into contracts, or issue grants or funding allocations to another agencies to collect cancer incidence data. Additionally, the bill will exempt those contracts, grants or funding allocations from review under the Public Contract Code, and also includes an urgency clause in an attempt to ensure that the CCR is able to execute a new award prior by June 30, 2012 to ensure that CCR data collection continues uninterrupted.

SB 161 Huff (Chapter 560)

SCHOOLS: EMERGENCY MEDICAL ASSISTANCE: ADMINISTRATION OF EPILEPSY MEDICATION

Senate Bill (SB) 161 will authorize a school district, county office of education, and charter school to train employees to administer an emergency antiseizure medication to pupils with epilepsy who are suffering a seizure when a registered nurse or licensed vocational nurse is not available and with permission from the parent or guardian. School or charter school employee volunteers will be required to receive emergency medical training. SB 161 will require the CDE, in consultation with CDPH, to develop guidelines for the training and supervision of school or charter school employees in providing emergency assistance. The bill's provisions will remain in effect until January 1, 2017.

SB 332 Padilla (Chapter 264)

RENTAL DWELLINGS: SMOKING

SB 332 will authorize landlords of residential dwellings to prohibit smoking of cigarettes or other tobacco products on any part of the property, including within individual units.

SB 332 will require landlords of properties that adopt smoking restrictions to include a provision in leases or rental agreements entered into on or after January 1, 2012, specifying areas where smoking is prohibited for lessees that have not previously occupied the dwelling unit. In addition, the bill will require landlords to provide notice of a change to the terms of any existing lease or rental agreement on or after January 1, 2012. Any change in the terms of a lease or rental agreement to prohibit smoking in the tenant's dwelling will be subject to federal, state and local requirements.

SB 583 Vargas (Chapter 711)

PERSONAL INCOME TAX: VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS: ALS/LOU GEHRIG'S DISEASE RESEARCH FUND

SB 583 will extend the sunset for the Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (ALS)/Lou Gehrig's Disease Research Fund until January 1, 2016.

SB 929 Evans (Chapter 474)

VEHICLES: CHILD PASSENGER RESTRAINTS

SB 929 will raise the age of children, from six to eight years, who are covered by motor vehicle occupant protection requirements to sit in the rear seat of a motor vehicle in an appropriate child passenger restraint system (i.e. booster seat).

CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Drinking Water and Environmental Management

AB 54 Solorio (Chapter 512) **DRINKING WATER**

AB 54 will direct CDPH to not prejudice an application for funding from the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) if the applicant initiates the project prior to CDPH's approval of the application. Bill provisions also relate to the powers and duties of Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs), and will require training for board members of mutual water companies (MWCs) regarding public water systems duties, require MWCs to maintain a financial reserve, and make MWCs liable for fines and other costs imposed under the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA).

AB 300 Ma (Chapter 638)

SAFE BODY ART ACT

AB 300 will enact the Safe Body Art Act (Act), to become operative on July 1, 2012, and repeal existing health and safety statutory requirements for persons engaged in the business of tattooing, body piercing, or permanent cosmetics, and establish new prescriptive standards.

The Act will require body art practitioners to register and obtain a health permit annually from the local enforcement agency (LEA), pay a permit fee, and comply with specified requirements, including, among other things, client information, vaccination, bloodborne pathogen training, and sanitation. The Act also provides for the regulation of body art facilities and enforcement by LEAs, and will establish separate ear piercing requirements. The bill will permit local governments to adopt regulations or ordinances that do not conflict with, or are more comprehensive than its provisions.

AB 762 Smyth (Chapter 222)

PUBLIC HEALTH: MEDICAL WASTE

AB 762 will amend the California Health and Safety (H&S) Code to allow sharps waste and pharmaceutical waste to be consolidated into a common container and will require the consolidated waste to be treated by either incineration at a permitted medical waste treatment facility or with an approved alternative treatment technology.

AB 938 V. Manuel Perez (Chapter 514) PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS

AB 938 will require that public notices currently given by public water systems in English be provided also in Spanish and any additional languages, based on the percentage of residents in the community whose primary language is other than English or Spanish. The public notices must also contain contact information (telephone number or address) for the public water system where the residents may contact the public water system to receive assistance. This bill will also make minor changes to the existing SDWSRF to clarify that costs for preparation of environmental documentation would be considered in the affordability analysis for SDWSRF projects.

AB 983 Perea (Chapter 515)

SAFE DRINKING WATER-STATE REVOLVING FUND

AB 983 will amend the SDWSRF statute to do the following:

- Describes the "acceptable result" to be achieved by a cost-effective project, and define "disadvantaged community" and "severely disadvantaged community;"
- Authorizes CDPH to take specific actions to improve access to financial assistance for water systems serving severely disadvantaged communities. The actions will include working to establish a process by which eligible claims will be paid to grant recipients within 30 days of CDPH receiving a complete claim request, and investigating the use of wire transfers or other appropriate procedures to expedite payments.
- Provides eligibility for certain water systems serving severely disadvantaged communities to receive up to 100 percent grant funding for eligible costs if CDPH determines they are unable to afford a loan.

AB 1194 Block (Chapter 516)

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT CONFORMANCE

AB 1194 will amend the H&S Code to bring the state's SDWA into conformance with the federal Safe Drinking Water Act (federal SDWA) and related federal regulations. Sponsored by CDPH.

- Broadens the definition of "human consumption";
- Describes in the H&S Code the criteria that currently covers apartments and other multi-unit dwellings to exempt them from regulation as public water systems;
- Deletes an exemption from most water quality requirements for systems that do not serve residents if certain requirements are met, including that the system either only serves water for hand washing, or makes bottled water available for other purposes;

- Continues the current, low fees for those water systems that will no longer be exempt from most SDWA requirements under the proposed repeal of the hand washing provision; and
- Authorizes the CDPH to levy a penalty of up to \$1,000 per day, for each day that a violation occurs, for any violation.

AB 1292 Hernandez (Chapter 518)

SAFE DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND: REVENUE BONDS

AB 1292 will provide CDPH the statutory authority to sell revenue bonds to provide the state's required 20 percent match in order to continue to receive federal funds for repair and replacement of drinking water infrastructure. Sponsored by CDPH.

SB 482 Kehoe (Chapter 592)

PUBLIC BEACH CONTAMINATION: STANDARDS: TESTING: CLOSING

SB 482 will transfer responsibility for establishing beach monitoring protocols, site locations, and monitoring frequency from CDPH to the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), and will give SWRCB oversight of the beach monitoring done by local agencies. SB 482 will also task SWRCB with identification of options for funding beach monitoring, and CDPH with closing a public beach if CDPH becomes aware of an untreated sewage release that has reached recreational waters adjacent to a public beach if the health officer has not closed it.

Food Drug and Radiation Safety

AB 688 Pan (Chapter 681)

FOOD AND DRUGS: SALE

This bill will prohibit a retailer from selling or offering for sale over-thecounter drugs, infant formula or baby food after the expiration or "use by" dates on its packaging.

AB 1014 Fletcher and Chesbro (Chapter 159)

FOOD FACILITIES: DEFINITION

AB 1014 will amend the H&S Code Section 113789 to exempt beer tasting rooms operated by a beer manufacturer from the definition of a retail food facility provided that no food, other than crackers and pretzels, are served at the facility. This exemption will remove beer tasting rooms from local environmental health regulatory agency oversight.

AB 1319 Butler (Chapter 467)

PRODUCT SAFETY: BISPHENOL A

AB 1319 will, beginning July 1, 2013, prohibit the manufacture, sale or distribution in commerce of any containers intended for use by children under the age of three years that contain bisphenol A (BPA) at a detectable level above 0.1 parts per billion. The provisions of AB 1319 will cease to be implemented if the Department of Toxic Substances Control adopts regulations limiting exposure or the level of BPA in any of these items.

SB 20 Padilla (Chapter 415)

FOOD FACILITIES: MENU LABELING

SB 20 will repeal the current H&S Code Section 114094 menu labeling requirements and add a new H&S Code Section to establish restaurant and vending machine menu labeling requirements in California that are identical to both existing federal law and the proposed U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) menu labeling rules. SB 20 will adopt the final menu labeling rules by reference once the final rule is published, which is scheduled to occur in late 2011.

SB 38 Padilla (Chapter 139)

RADIATION CONTROL: HEALTH FACILITIES AND CLINICS: RECORDS

SB 38 will change the date from January 1, 2011 to July 1, 2012, when a facility is required to report to CDPH an event in which the misadministration of radiation occurs on a patient and removes a requirement for the reporting of adverse events to CDPH. This bill contains an **urgency** clause.

SB 39 Padilla (Chapter 140)

CAFFEINATED BEER BEVERAGES

SB 39 will prohibit the manufacture, distribution and retail sale of beer to which caffeine has been directly added as a separate ingredient, in California.

SB 303 Padilla (Chapter 233)

FOOD SAFETY: FOOD HANDLERS

SB 303 will amend the H&S Code to redefine "food handler" to include only food handlers involved in the preparation, storage, and service of food at retail food facilities where consumers pay for the food. This bill will then expand the list of food handler card exemptees to include food handlers who are employed by or volunteer at food facilities where prepared food is provided to consumers free of charge. SB 303 will also clearly identify a process for individual and companies wishing to become

accredited food handler training and testing providers. SB 303 contains an **urgency** clause.

SB 646 Pavley (Chapter 473)

TOXICS: ENFORCEMENT: LEAD AND CADMIUM JEWELRY

This bill requires parties who were signatories to an amended consent judgement, entitled <u>People vs. Burlington Coat Factory Warehouse</u> <u>Corporation, et al.</u>, and those who signed later similar agreements to comply with the enforcement prohibitions of the Lead-Containing Jewelry Law.

In addition, this bill revises the provisions of law by which a manufacturer or supplier of jewelry must provide certification to a person who sells or offers for sale this jewelry, upon the request of that person, to instead, require the manufacturer or supplier to prepare a certificate of compliance and adds "tie clip" to be included under the definition of jewelry.

SB 818 Wolk (Chapter 567)

FOOD LABELING: OLIVE OIL

SB 818 will revise the existing definitions and grade standards of olive oil and olive-pomace oil to make them consistent with the federal standards that were promulgated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) in 2010.

CENTER FOR FAMILY HEALTH

Genetic Disease Screening Program

AB 395 Pan (Chapter 461)

SEVERE COMBINED IMMUNODEFICIENCY (SCID) EXPANDED NEWBORN SCREENING

AB 395 will require CDPH to add Severe Combined Immunodeficiency (SCID), to the panel of disorders screened for by the California Genetic Disease Screening Program Newborn Screening Program. In implementing the SCID screening, CDPH will also be required to screen for other T-cell lymphopenias that are detectable as a result of screening for SCID, to the extent that it will not require additional costs or equipment beyond that needed to test for SCID.

Women, Infants, and Children

SB 502 Pavley and De Leon (Chapter 511)
HOSPITAL INFANT FEEDING ACT

This bill will add Section 123366 to the H&S Code, requiring all general acute care and special hospitals with perinatal units to:

- have a hospital infant-feeding policy which promotes breastfeeding, utilizing guidance provided by the World Health Organization's, United Nations' Children's Fund Baby Friendly Hospital Initiative Guidelines or the Model Hospital Policy Recommendations of CDPH;
- communicate the policy to perinatal staff routinely, starting with hospital orientation; and
- post the policy in the perinatal unit or on the hospital or health system internet website.

In addition, the bill states that the policy will include guidance on formula supplementation or bottle-feeding when requested by the mother or when exclusive breastfeeding is contraindicated. The requirements of this bill will become operative January 1, 2014.

CENTER FOR HEALTH CARE QUALITY

Licensing and Certification

AB 415 Logue (Chapter 547)

HEALING ARTS: TELEHEALTH

AB 415 creates the Telehealth Advancement Act of 2011 which will align state law with federal regulations pertaining to credentialing and privileging of providers for telehealth services. This bill will allow telehealth services to be provided with verbal consent from the patient. This bill will also enact in the requirements for delivery of telehealth under Medi-Cal, Medicare and private insurance.

AB 641 Feuer (Chapter 729)

LONG-TERM CARE

AB 641 will repeal the citation review conference process and will delete the existing prohibition that excludes the ability to issue both a citation under state law and recommend a civil monetary penalty under federal law.

This bill will add Section 14015.12 to the Welfare and Institution Code (W&I) concerning Medi-Cal's Income and Resource rules as they pertain to registered domestic partners and same-sex spouses.

AB X 1 19 Blumenfield (Chapter 4) LONG-TERM CARE

This bill will make changes to the Medi-Cal Program reimbursement rates for nursing homes for implementation of the Budget Bill for 2011-12 and will increase the maximum amount of a class "B" citation to \$2,000.

SB 91 Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review (Chapter 119)

ADULT DAY HEALTH CARE CENTERS

This bill will modify existing law pertaining to licensure of Adult Day Health Care (ADHC) centers and ADHC center's operation of an Adult Day Program.

SB 100 Price (Chapter 645)

HEALING ARTS

SB 100 amends the existing definition of an outpatient setting to include In Vitro Fertilization clinics and expands the Medical Board of California's role in oversight of accreditation agencies and outpatient settings.

SB 177 Strickland (Chapter 331)

CONGREGATE LIVING HEALTH FACILITIES

SB 177 will change the requirements that allow CDPH to permit a congregate living health facility (CLHF) to be licensed for up to 25 beds, under specific circumstances. This bill will allow the bed limit for CLHFs to be raised specifically in Santa Barbara County.

CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS DISEASES

AIDS, Office of

AB 604 Skinner (Chapter 744)

NEEDLE EXCHANGE PROGRAMS

AB 604 will permit, until January 1, 2019, CDPH, Office of AIDS (OA) to authorize entities that apply to CDPH and meet certain conditions to provide hypodermic needle and syringe exchange services. This bill will require CDPH syringe exchange program (SEP) authorization be made after consultation with local health officers (LHOs) and local law enforcement officials, and after a 90 day public comment period. In making the authorization determination, CDPH will be required to balance the concerns of law enforcement with the public health benefits. AB 604 will require that CDPH SEP authorizations to not exceed two years. Before the end of the two year period, CDPH will reauthorize the SEP in consultation with the LHO and local law enforcement officials.

AB 604 will change current requirements for LHOs who must report to city or county government on locally-authorized SEPs by requiring the report to be made on a biennial, rather than an annual, basis. AB 604 will specify that SEP staff and volunteers not be subject to criminal prosecution for possession of needles and syringes acquired from an authorized SEP.

SB 41 Yee (Chapter 738)

HYPODERMIC NEEDLES AND SYRINGES

SB 41 will permit nonprescription syringe sales (NPSS) through licensed pharmacies throughout the state until January 1, 2015. This bill will allow customers 18 years of age and older to purchase and possess up to 30 syringes for personal use when acquired from an authorized source.

It will specify that pharmacists, physicians and syringe exchange programs (SEPs) are authorized sources of nonprescription syringes for disease prevention purposes. SB 41 will require pharmacies and SEPs which offer NPSS to provide options for safe syringe disposal.

The bill will also require pharmacies that offer NPSS to provide education to customers on how to safely dispose of sharps waste and how to access drug treatment, and testing and treatment for human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis C virus (HCV). The CDPH, OA and the California Board of Pharmacy are required by the bill to post this same information on how consumers can access testing and treatment for HIV and viral hepatitis; safely dispose of sharps waste; and access drug treatment on their Web sites. SB 41 will make inoperative until January 1, 2015, provisions of California code related to the Disease Prevention Demonstration Project, a pilot program which allows NPSS in counties and cities which authorize it, and for which authorizing statute sunsets on December 31, 2018.

SB 41 will expand access to syringes throughout the state, and will potentially reduce the sharing of contaminated syringes and also reduce the spread of HIV, HCV, hepatitis B virus (HBV) and other blood-borne diseases by increasing access to sterile syringes.

SB 422 Wright (Chapter 151)

REPORTING OF CERTAIN COMMUNICABLE DISEASES

SB 422 will permit a physician and surgeon to disclose HIV-positive test results to designated LHD HIV partner services (PS) staff. The physician and surgeon will only disclose identifying information about the HIV-positive person if that person provides written consent for the disclosure.

This bill will permit designated LHD PS staff to alert a spouse, sexual partner, or partner of shared needles of a potential exposure to HIV. PS

staff will not be permitted to disclose any identifying information about the HIV-positive person or about the physician making the report.

SB 946 Steinberg (Chapter 650)

AUTISM-HIV/AIDS REPORTING

Section 3 of SB 946 will amend H&S Code Section 121022, to allow the CDPH, OA, to revise the HIV/AIDS Confidential Case Report form (adult and pediatric) after consideration of reporting guidelines published by the federal Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and implement such revisions without adopting regulations. OA will be required to file the revised form with the Secretary of State and the form will be printed in Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.

Communicable Disease Control

AB 186 Williams (Chapter 540)

REPORTABLE DISEASES AND CONDITIONS

AB 186 will amend existing law to provide CDPH with the authority to establish and modify, as needed, a list of communicable diseases and conditions for which clinical laboratories are required to submit a *culture or specimen* to local and state public health laboratories. This bill will allow CDPH to modify the list at any time in consultation with appropriate local public health stakeholders, including, but not limited to, local health officers and public health laboratory directors.

AB 258 Hagman (Chapter 542)

RABIES: VACCINATIONS

AB 258 will create an exemption to the canine rabies vaccination requirement when a licensed veterinarian determines, on an annual basis, that a rabies vaccination would endanger the dog's life due to diseases or other conditions that the veterinarian can verify and document. This bill will require a canine rabies vaccination exemption request form be developed by CDPH. Owners of exempted dogs will need to sign the exemption request and accept any liability and consequences. The local health officer will review exemption requests, have final authority on granting exemptions, and report exemptions issued to CDPH. Exempted dogs will still be required to be licensed by the local authority.

AB 499 Atkins (Chapter 652)

MINORS: MEDICAL CARE: CONSENT

AB 499 will allow minors to consent to preventive services for sexually transmitted diseases.

AB 709 Brownley (Chapter 463)

FOSTER CHILDREN: SCHOOL PLACEMENT: IMMUNIZATION RECORDS

AB 709 will amend Education Code, Section 48853.5 and add Section 120341 to the H&S Code to specify that a school is required to immediately enroll the foster child transferring to that school even if the child is unable to produce medical records, including, but not limited to, records or other proof of immunization history.

AB 1382 Hernandez (Chapter 643)

HEPATITIS C ANTIBODY TESTING

AB 1382 is CDPH-sponsored legislation. This bill will enable HIV test counselors who are currently authorized to perform HIV tests waived under the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act (CLIA) of 1998 to also perform two additional Food and Drug Administration (FDA)-approved, CLIA-waived tests: one for HCV, and another test which combines assays for both HIV and HCV. This legislation will enable HIV testing sites to use new rapid, CLIA-waived HCV and combination HIV/HCV testing technology when it becomes available as waived tests in 2012.

SB 614 Kehoe (Chapter 123)

CHILDHOOD IMMUNIZATIONS

SB 614 will permit pupils in 7th through 12th grades to conditionally attend school for up to the first 30 calendar days of the 2011-2012 school year before fulfilling a new admission requirement to be fully immunized against pertussis (whooping cough), if specified conditions are met. This bill will become inoperative on July 1, 2012, and the provisions of this bill sunset on January 1, 2013. This bill includes an urgency claus

HEALTH INFORMAITON AND STRATEGIC PLANING

AB 433 Lowenthal (Chapter 718)

BIRTH CERTIFICATES

AB 433 will allow a person who has undergone "clinically appropriate treatment" for the purpose of gender transition to file a petition in any superior court to recognize the change in gender, and if applicable, a name change and request for a new birth certificate. The bill will make the physician's affidavit final evidence of the gender change if it contains specified language provided in this bill. The bill will not allow objections to be filed and will require the court to grant the petition if the affidavit shows that the petitioner has undergone clinically appropriate treatment for the purpose of gender transition.

AB 687 Fletcher (Chapter 462)

ADOPTION

AB 687 addresses the parental consent form and adoption requests, notice of proceedings relating to adoption, the termination of parental rights of an alleged father, and authorization of a license private adoption agency to serve as the designated administrator for any interstate place of a nondependent child.

AB 791 Ammiano (Chapter 59)

DEPENDENT CHILDREN: BIRTH CERTIFICATES

This bill will add Section 361.5(j) and amend Section 366.21(h) of the W&I Code ordering a birth certificate be given to the caregiver of a dependent child, or the child if he or she is 16 years of age or older, upon denial or termination of reunification services by the Court.

AB 905 Pan (Chapter 321)

DISPOSITIONS OF REMAINS: AUTHORIZED AGENT

This bill recognizes in state law the U.S. Department of Defense Form 93 (Record of Emergency Data) or its successor form, as an acceptable written instrument of a military service member's designation of a person to direct the disposition of the service member's remains in the event of their death while on active duty with the U.S. Armed Forces.

AB 1053 Gordon (Chapter 402)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENALTIES AND FEES

AB 1053 will increase: 1) the base fee for certified copies of death, fetal death, and birth certificates and; 2) the registration fee assessed to the parent of a minor when filing a petition to make the minor a ward of the court. AB 1053 will also provide clean-up by deleting section references that are no longer in statute.

AB 1088 Eng (Chapter 689)

STATE AGENCIES: COLLECTION OF DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

AB 1088 will amend Section 8310.5 and add 8310.7 of the Government Code to require a state agency, board, or commission, including CDPH to collect demographic data as to the ancestry or ethnic origin of major Asian, Native Hawaiian and other Pacific Islander groups.

This bill will further mandate that CDPH include major Asian, Native Hawaiian and other Pacific Islander group data in every demographic report on ancestry or ethnic origins of Californians released or published by CDPH and would require annually updated demographic data to be publicly available on the CDPH website by July 1, 2012, and annually thereafter.

SB 154 Wolk (Chapter 120)

MARRIAGE LECENSES: VITAL RECORDS: FEES: DOMESTIC

VIOLENCE: SOLANO COUNTY

Existing law allows the Solano County Board of Supervisors, upon making certain findings and declarations, to authorize a temporary fee increase for marriage licenses and confidential marriage licenses as well as for certified copies of marriage certificates, birth certificates, fetal death records, and death records of up to two dollars (\$2.00). These fees are allocated for purposes of domestic violence prevention, intervention, and prosecution. The existing law is scheduled to sunset on January 1, 2012. This bill will repeal the January 1, 2012, sunset date and extend the existing law indefinitely.

LEGAL SERVICES, OFFICE OF

SB 24 Simitian (Chapter 197)

PERSONAL INFORMATION: PRIVACY

SB 24 will require any agency, person, or business that must issue an information security breach notification to affected individuals pursuant to existing law to fulfill certain additional requirements. These requirements include listing the agency name and contact information on the notifications along with the type of information that was breached.

The bill will also require any agency that must issue a notification to more than 500 individuals pursuant to existing law to also submit that notification to the State Attorney General, and that any substitute notification must include notification to the State Office of Information Security. The bill also provides that any business that is covered by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) will be deemed to have complied with the bill's provisions, if it has complied with specified HIPAA breach provisions, and also that any substitute notification must include notification to the State Office of Privacy Protection.

MULTICULTURAL HEALTH, OFFICE OF

AB 673 John A. Perez (Chapter 639)

OFFICE OF MULTICULTURAL HEALTH: LGBT COMMUNITIES

AB 673 will broaden the scope of the CDPH and the Department of Health Care Services, Office of Multicultural Health, which addresses issues of health disparities and access to quality care among the state's racial and ethnic communities, to also include the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) community. Expansion of duties for the LGBT

community will include: strategic planning, Department-wide coordination and planning of LGBT issues, internal and external liaison activities, data and information sharing, and biennial reporting to the Legislature.

2011 ENROLLED BILLS

BILL NUMBER	AUTHOR	FINAL STATUS	CHAPTER	PROGRAM	PAGE NUMBER
AB 6	Fuentes	Sign	501	CD	1
AB 54	Solorio	Sign	512	DE	4
AB 152	Fuentes	Sign	503	CD	1
AB 172	Eng	Veto		AD	
AB 186	Williams	Sign	540	DC	12
AB 258	Hagman	Sign	542	DC	12
AB 300	Ма	Sign	638	DE	4
AB 395	Pan	Sign	461	GD	8
AB 415	Logue	Sign	547	KC	9
AB 433	Lowenthal, B.	Sgin	718	HI	13
AB 499	Atkins	Sign	652	DC	12
AB 516	V. Manuel Perez	Sign	277	CD	1
AB 581	John A. Preez	Sign	505	CD	1
AB 604	Skinner	Sign	744	AS	10
AB 641	Feuer	Sign	729	LC	9
AB 673	John A. Perez	Sign	639	MH	15
AB 687	Fletcher	Sign	462	HI	14
AB 688	Pan	Sign	681	FR	6
AB 709	Brownley	Sign	463	DC	13
AB 762	Smyth	Sign	222	DE	4
AB 768	Gatto	Sign	398	LA	2
AB 791	Ammiano	Sign	59	HI	14
AB 795	Block	Sign	617	DC	2
Ab 905	Pan	Sign	321	HI	14
AB 938	V. Manuel Perez	Sign	514	DE	5
AB 983	Perea	Sign	515	DE	5
AB 1014	Fletcher	Sign	159	FR	6
AB 1053	Gordong	Sign	402	HI	14
AB 1088	Eng	Sign	689	HI	14
AB 1116	Fong	Veto		EP	_
AB 1194	Block	Sign	516	DE	5
AB 1292	Hernandez, R.	Sign	518	DE	6
AB 1319	Butler	Sign	467	FR	7
AB 1329	Davis	Sign	642	CD	2
AB 1382	Hernandez, R.	Sign	643	DC	13
ABX 1 19	Blumenfield	Sign	4	LC	10

BILL NUMBER	AUTHOR	FINAL STATUS	CHAPTER	PROGRAM	PAGE NUMBER
SB 20	Padilla	Sign	415	FR	7
SB 24	Simitian	Sign	197	LG	15
SB 38	Padilla	Sign	139	FR	7
SB 39	Padilla	Sign	140	FR	7
SB 41	Yee	Sign	738	AS	11
SB 91	Comm. On Budget	Sign	119	LC	10
SB 100	Price	Sign	645	LC	10
SB 105	Yee	Veto		CD	
SB 154	Wolk	Sign	120	HI	15
SB 161	Huff	Sign	560	CD	3
SB 177	Strickland	Sign	331	LC	10
SB 263	Pavley	Veto		DE	
SB 278	Gaines	Veto	000	CD	_
SB 303	Padilla	Sign	233	FR	7
SB 332	Padilla	Sign	264	CD	3
SB 408	Hernandez	Veto		HI	
SB 416	Kehoe	Veto		HI	4.4
SB 422	Wrtight	Sign	151	AS	11
SB 442	Calderon	Veto		LC	
SB 482	Kehoe	Sign	592	DE	6
SB 502	Pavley	Sign	511	WC	9
SB 583	Vargas	Sign	511	WC	9
SB 614	Kehoe	Sign	123	DC	13
SB 646	Pavley	Sign	473	FR	8
SB 737	Walters	Veto	1	DE	
SB 747	Walters	Veto		DE	
SB 747	Kehoe	Veto		LC	
SB 791	Simitian	Veto		CD	
SB 818	Wolk	Sign	567	FR	8
SB 929	Evans	Sign	474	CD	3
SB 946	Steinberg	Sign	650	AS	12

^{*}See Program Assignments and Acronyms on Page 18.

PROGRAM ASSIGNMENTS AND ACRONYMS

PROGRAM	CODE
Administration	AD
AIDS, Office of	AS
Border Health, Office of	BH
Budget Office	ВО
Chronic Disease and Injury Control	CD
Civil Rights, Office of	CR
Communicable Disease Control	DC
Drinking Water and Environmental Management	DE
Environmental and Occupational Disease Control	EO
Emergency Preparedness	EP
Family Planning, Office of	FP
Food, Drug, and Radiation Safety	FR
Genetic Disease Screening Program	GD
Health Information & Strategic Planning	HI
Internal Audits	IA
Information Technology	IT
Legislative and Governmental Affairs	LA
Laboratory Field Services	LB
Licensing and Certification	LC
Legal Services, Office of	LG
Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health	MA
Multicultural Health, Office of	MH
Patient Safety, Office of	PS
Women, Infants, and Children	WC
Women's Health, Office of	WH

SIGN MESSAGES/LETTERS TO JOURNAL

(Sign and Veto messages follow this index in number order.)

BILL NUMBER	AUTHOR	SUBJECT	DIV
AB 408	Hernandez	Health Facilities: Licensure	LC
AB 604	Skinner	Needle Exchange Programs	AS
AB 1329	Davis	Ken Maddy California Cancer Registry	CD

VETO MESSAGES

BILL NUMBER	AUTHOR	SUBJECT	DIV
AB 172	Eng	State Agencies: Information: Internet Web Sites	AD
AB 1116	Fong	Emergency Services: Populations with Limited English Proficiency	EP
SB 105	Yee	Public Safety: Snow Sport Helmets	CD
SB 263	Pavley	Wells: Reports: Public Availability	DE
SB 278	Gaines	Public Safety: Ski Resorts	CD
SB 408	Hernandez	Health Facilities: Licensure	LC
SB 416	Kehoe	Health: Survey	HI
SB 442	Callderon	Hospitals: Interpreters	LC
SB 737	Walters	Organized Camps	DE
SB 747	Kehoe	Continuing Education: Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender Patients	LC
SB 791	Simitian	Health Care: Mammograms	CD